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BEFORE THE UNITED STATES 2013 SEP 26 ~H 3: 17 
ENVIRONMENTRAELGPIROONTIEIICTION AGENCY REGlO}iAL HEJ\~ING CLERK 

EPA REGION III. PH!LA. PA 

In the Matter of: 

Phoe ix Color Corp. 
18249\Phoenix Drive 
Hagelistown, MD 21742 

Respondent 

Phoenix Color Corp. 
18249\Phoenix Drive 
Hagerstown, MD 21742 

Facility 

Docket No. RCRA-03-2013-0183 

Proceeding under Section 3008(a) and 
(g) of the Resource Conservation and 

1

1 

Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 
Section 6928(a) and (g) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

This Consent Agreement (''CA") is entered into by the Director, Land and Chemicals 
Divisi n, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III ("EPA", "Agency" or 
"Com~lainant") and Phoenix Color Corp. ("Respondent") pursuant to Section 3008(a) of the 
Solid WI aste Disposal Act, commonly known as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Ac. 
("RCRIA") of 1976, as amended by inter alia, the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments : 
("HS~A") of 1984 (collectively referred to hereinafter as "RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), and 
the Com~olidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, 
and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules of Practice")( 40 
C.P.R. art 22, including, specifically, 40 C.P.R.§§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3). II 

I 
This CA and the accompanying Final Order ("FO," hereinafter jointly referred to as the 

"CAF9") address alleged violations by Respondent of Subtitle C of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 69~1-
6939e, ~he federal hazardous waste regulations set forth at 40 C.P.R. Parts 260-266, 268 and 270-
273, an(:l\ the State ofMaryland Hazardous Waste Management Regulations ("MdHWMR"), s~t 
forth at the Code of Maryland Regulations ("CO MAR"), Title 26, Subtitle 13 et seq., in 1

1 

connection with Respondent's facility located at 18249 Phoenix Drive, Hagerstown, MD 21742 
(the "F~cility"). The MdHWMR were originally authorized by EPA on February 11, 1985, I 

pursuarlt to Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b). Revisions to the MdHWMR set 
1

1 

forth atiCOMAR, Title 26, Subtitle 13 were authorized by EPA effective July 31, 2001 and \ 
September 24, 2004. The provisions of the revised authorized program are enforceable by EPA 
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pursu • nt to Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a). 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Pursuant to § 22.13(b) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, this CAFO simultaneo~sly 
commences and concludes an administrative proceeding against Respondent, brought 
under Section 3008(a) and (g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g), to resolve alleged 
violations of RCRA at Respondent's Facility. I 

I 

For purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegation~ set 
forth in this CAPO. I 

Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations and conclusions, of 
law set forth in this CA, except as provided in Paragraph 2, above. 

For the purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent agrees not to contest EPA's 
jurisdiction with respect to the execution and issuance of this CAPO, or the enforcement 
of the CAPO. II 

For purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent hereby expressly waives its right tdl 
contest the allegations herein or to appeal the FO attached hereto. 

Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAPO and agrees to comply with its tenns. 

Respondent shall bear its own costs and attorney's fees in connection with this 
proceeding. 

II. NOTICE OF ACTION TO THE STATE OF MARYLAND I 

On March 22, 2013, EPA sent a letter to the State of Maryland, through the Maryland
1 

Department of the Environment (''MOE"), providing prior notice of the initiation of this 
action in accordance with Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2). I 

III. ALLEGATIONS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW I 

In accordance with 40 C.P.R.§§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3), Complainant alleges 
the findings of fact and conclusions of law as set forth below. I 

The EPA's Office of Administrative Law Judges has jurisdiction over this matter 
1 

pursuant to RCRA Section 3008(a) and (g), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g), and 40 C.P.R. 
§§ 22.1(a)(4) and .4(c). : I 

Respondent is a "person" as defined by RCRA Section 1 004(15), 42 U .S.C. § 6903(15), 
nd COMAR 26.13.01.03B(61). 
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12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

Respondent is and has been, at all times relevant to the allegations set forth in this cAPo, 
I 

the "owner" and/or "operator" of a hazardous waste storage "facility" located at 18249 
Phoenix Drive, Hagerstown, MD 21742, as these terms are defined by COMAR 
26.13.01.03B. ' 

I 

Respondent is and has been, at all times relevant to the allegations set forth in this CAFO, 
a "generator" of, and has engaged in the "storage" of, materials that are "solid wastesi" 
and "hazardous wastes" at the Facility as those terms are defined by COMAR I 
26.13.01.03B, as described below. 

On November 14, 2012, EPA representatives conducted a Compliance Evaluation 
Inspection ("CEI") of the Facility to assess compliance with Subtitle C of RCRA, 42 
U.S.C. §§ 6921- 6939g, the federal hazardous waste regulations set forth at 40 C.P.R.! 
Parts 260-266, 268 and 270-273, and the federally authorized MdHWMR requiremen

1

ts 
set forth at COMAR, Title 26, Subtitle 13, et seq. , I 

On April 24, 2013, EPA sent Respondent a "Request to Show eLse" letter providinJ 
Respondent with an opportunity to discuss alleged violations of Subtitle C of RCRA, ithe 
federal hazardous waste management regulations, and the federally authorized [ 
MdHWMR requirements at the Facility as set forth in the letter. On May 29, 2013, 1 

Respondent and EPA engaged in settlement discussions regarding the alleged violatidns. 
, I 
! 

COUNT I 
(Operating a Hazardous Waste Storage Facility 

Without a Permit or Interim Status) 

16. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 15 of this CAFO are incorporated herein by 
reference as though fully set forth at length. 

I 

17. Pursuant to Section 3005(a) and (e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and (e), and COMAR 
26.13.07.01 and 26.13.06, with certain exceptions not relevant to the violations allegeo 
herein, no person may own or operate a facility for the treatment, storage, or disposal bf 
hazardous waste without first obtaining a permit for such facility, or obtaining interim! 
status for such facility. ' 



! 

a number of conditions set forth in that section, including, inter G:lia: I 
II 

a. Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(d), the generator must accumulate the ! 

hazardous waste in containers in accordance with COMAR 26.13.05.09, whi~h 
requires, inter alia, that the containers be closed during storage of hazardous 

1

1 

waste except when necessary to add or remove waste (COMAR 26.13.05.09D), 
and that the generator perform at least weekly inspections of areas where 1\ 

containers of hazardous waste are stored (COMAR 26.13.05.09E); 
. I 

b. Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(e), the date upon ~hich each period ofii 
accumulation begins must be clearly marked and visible for inspection on each 

. I 

container of hazardous waste; I, I 

c. Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(f), each container must be, inter alia, I 

labeled or marked clearly with the words "Hazardous Waste," while being I 
• I I 

accumulated on s1te; I 1

1 

d. Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(g), the generator rriust comply with the I; 

requirements for owners and operators in COMAR 26.13~05.02G, .03, and .0~. 
COMAR 26.13.05.04(C)(4) requires owners or operators ,to, inter alia, maintain a 
contingency plan that includes the names, addresses, and phone numbers (office 
and home) of all persons qualified to act as emergency coprdinator; '1 

I I 

e. Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(g), the generator must comply with the '
1 

requirements for owners or operators in COMAR 26.13.05.02G, .03, and .04. ! 

COMAR 26.13.05.02G requires owners or operators to, i~ter alia: I 

i. Provide employees with annual review of initial hazardous waste training; 

md I 
I 

u. Prepare and maintain written job descriptions for each position at the 
facility related to hazardous waste management. 1

i 

I 

20. At the time of the violations alleged in this CA, Respondent was not eligible for an 
exemption under COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1) with respect to the on-site storage of the 
hazardous waste described below because it did not meet the following conditions: 

, I 

Failure to Keep Containers of Hazardous Waste dosed 
I 

I 

a. At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent failed to keep closed five 
• I 

(5) containers of hazardous waste, EPA Hazardous Waste Code Nos. D001 I 

(ignitability) and F003 (spent non-halogenated solvent), located in the 90-day I 

storage area, as required by COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(d), ~hich in turn 'I 

references COMAR 26.13.05.09D; I I 

! I 
I 
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At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent failed to keep closed 
(1) container of hazardous waste, EPA Hazardous Waste ;code No. D002 
(corrosivity), located in the plate etching room, as required by COMAR 
26.13.03.05E(1)(d), which in turn references COMAR 2tp3.05.09D; 

. I 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent failed to keep closed 
three (3) containers of florescent bulbs, EPA Hazardous ~aste Code No. DOq9 
(mercury), located in a second floor store room, as required by COMAR I 

26.13.03.05E(1)(d), which in turn references COMAR 26.13.05.09D. I 
I I 
I I 

Failure to Inspect Containers in 90-Day Storage Area 1\ 

I 

For the calendar week that includes November 14, 2012, Respondent failed to'. 
inspect areas where containers were stored, at least weekl

1

y, looking for leaks and 
deterioration of containers and the containment system ca,used by corrosion I 

other factors, as required by COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(d), which in turn 
references COMAR 26.13.05.09E. i 'I 

Failure to Label and Date Hazardous Waste Containers 
I 
I 
I 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent failed to label 
I 

approximately ten (10) containers of hazardous waste located in the 90-day 
storage area and two (2) containers of florescent bulbs Iodated on a shelving upit 
in a second floor storeroom, with accumulation dates, as r'~quired by COMAR1 
26.13.03.05E(1)(e); ' I il 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent f~iled to label one (1)'j 
container of hazardous waste (EPA Hazardous Waste Co~e Nos. D001 

1 

(ignitability) and F003 (spent non-halogenated solvent)), located in the 90-day, 
storage area, and two (2) containers of florescent bulbs (ErA Hazardous Wast~ 
Code No. D009 (mercury)), located in a second floor stor~ room, with the worps 
"Hazardous Waste," as required by COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(f). I 

Failure to Complete Contingency Plan 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent failed to have a 
completed contingency plan that lists the names, addresse~, and phone numbers 
(office and home) of all persons qualified to act as emerge:ncy coordinator, as 
required by COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(g), which in turn references COMAR 
26.13.os.o4C(4). · ·[ 

Failure to Provide Annual Hazardous Waste Training Refresher 
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21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

h. Based on the results of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent failed to have 
the emergency coordinator take part in an annual review of the initial training' 
during calendar year 2011, as required by COMAR 26.13.03.05E(1)(g), which in 
turn references COMAR 26.13.05.02G(3). 

Job Descriptions 

i. At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent ,ailed to maintain at the 
facility hazardous waste management job descriptions, as! required by CO MAR 
26.13.03.05E(1)(g), which in turn references COMAR 26.13.05.02G(4)(b). 

,I 

As set forth above, Respondent was storing hazardous waste at the Facility without a 
permit, interim status, or valid exemption, and therefore, violate9 COMAR 26.13.07.01 
and Section 3005(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a), by operating a hazardous waste 
storage facility without a permit, interim status, or valid exemption. 

. !I 

COUNTII 1l 

(Failure to Make a Hazardous Waste Determinati~n) 
,, 

il 
The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 21 of this CAPO are incorporated herein by 

'I reference as though fully set forth at length. !I 

II 
Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.03.02A, a person who generates a solid waste, as defined in 
COMAR 26.13.02.02, shall determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using the I 

following method: 
1
.

1

1 ! 

! I 

The person should first determine if the waste is excluded! from regulation under a. 

b. 

c. 

COMAR 26.13.02.04-.04-5; ~~ 

The person shall then determine if the waste is listed as a hazardous waste in ,, 
COMAR 26.13.02.15-.19; :1 

~I 
If the waste is not listed as a hazardous waste in COMAR :26.13.02.15-.19, the 
person shall determine whether the waste is identified by Jither: 

'I 
1. Testing the waste according to the methods set forth in COMAR 

26.13.02.10--.14, or according to an equivalent m~thod approved by the 
Secretary under COMAR 26.13.01.04B; or II 

ii. Applying knowledge of the hazard characteristic of the waste in light o 
the materials or the processes used. 11 

I espondent generates used aerosol cans that previously containedjmaterials used for 
perations at the Facility. The contents of the used aerosol cans ate hazardous wastes 
ssigned EPA Hazardous Waste Code Nos. D001 (ignitability) and D003 (reactivity). 
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25. 

26. 

27. 

28. 

29. 

30. 

31. 

32. 

33. 

34. 

The wastes referred to in Paragraph 24 are, and were at the time pf the violations alleged 
herein, ''solid wastes," as this term is defined in COMAR 26.13.02.02. I 

II I • I I 
At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent was disbosing of aerosol can's in 
the Facility's trash, without first making a waste determination. il 1 

. I 

Respondent violated COMAR 26.13.03.02A by failing to perfor~ hazardous waste . 
determinations for the aerosol cans, EPA Hazardous Waste Code Nos. D001 (ignitability) 
and D003 (reactivity), generated at the Facility. II 

COUNT III II 

(Failure to Keep Hazardous Waste Containers C/J.sed) 
. II 
. I 

The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 27 of this CAFO are incorporated herein by 1 

reference as though fully set forth at length. I I 

Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.05.090, a container holding hazardoys waste must alway~ be 
closed during storage, except when it is necessary to add or rem~re waste. ! 

• !1 ! 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, five (5) containers o~ hazardous waste, EPA 
Hazardous Waste Code Nos. D001 (ignitability) and F003 (spent non-halogenated 

'I solvent), were located in the 90-day storage area. These containers were not closed 
during storage of such waste. No waste was being added to or retrwved from these 
containers at the time of the inspection. I 

I 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, one (1) container of hazardous waste, EPA 
Hazardous Waste Code No. D002 (corrosivity), was located in the plate etching room; 
This container was not closed during storage of such waste. No waste was being added 
to or removed from this container at the time of the inspection. II , 1. 

I ! 
I! 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, three (3) containers o,f florescent bulbs, EPA 
Hazardous Waste Code No. D009 (mercury), were located in a se~ond floor store room. 
These containers were not closed during storage of such waste. ~o bulbs were being 
added to or removed from these containers at the time of the inspection. 

. II 
Respondent violated COMAR 26.13.05.090 by failing to keep cd:ntainers, EPA 
Hazardous Waste Code Nos. DOOl, F003, D002, and D009, closed except when 
necessary to add or remove waste. : 11 : 

COUNTIV II: 
(Failure to Inspect Containers in 90-Day Storage A~ea) 

II 
The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 33 of this CAFO are incOrporated herein by 
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35. 

36. 

37. 

38. 

39. 

40. 

41. 

42. 

43. 

44. 

reference as though fully set forth at length. 

Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.05.09E, the owner or operator of the,facility shall inspect 
areas where containers are stored, at least weekly, looking for le4ks and for deterioration 
of containers and the containment system caused by corrosion or other factors. 

II ' 
I , 1 

For the calendar week that includes November 14, 2012, Respondent failed to inspect 
areas where containers were stored, at least weekly, looking for l~aks and deterioration of 
containers and the containment system caused by corrosion or other factors. i 

II ' i 
Respondent violated CO MAR 26.13.05.09E by failing to insped1 areas where containers 
are stored, at least weekly, looking for leaks and for deterioratiorl of containers and the 
containment system caused by corrosion or other factors. 'j , i 

COUNTV , 
(Failure to Provide Annual Hazardous Waste Managemerlt Training) 

' II i 

The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 37 of this CAPO are inc~rporated herein by 
II 

reference as though fully set forth at length. 11 : i 

Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.05.02G(1), facility personnel shall successfully complete a 
program of classroom instruction or on-the-job training that teac~es them to perform their 
duties in a way that ensures the facility's compliance with the requirements of CO MAR 

26.13.05. II i' ! 

I ! 

Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.05.02G(3), facility personnel shall take part in an annual 
review of the initial training referred to in Paragraph 39. 1

1

1 :. 

,I • 
Respondent failed to have the emergency coordinator take part ini an annual review of the 
initial training during calendar year 2011. • 11 : I 

Respondent violated COMAR 26.13.05.02G(3) by failing to havJ the emergency ' 
coordinator take part in an annual review of the initial training dufing calendar year 2011. 

II I i 

COUNT VI II ! : ,, ' 

(Failure to Maintain at the Facility Hazardous Waste Management Job Descriptions) 

II : 
The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 42 of this CAPO are incdrporated herein by 

,, ' 

reference as though fully set forth at length. II i 

Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.05.02G(4)(b), the owner or operator df a facility shall 
maintain written job descriptions for each position related to haz~rdous waste 
management at the facility. , ill 

, I 
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45. 

46. 

47. 

48. 

49. 

50. 

51. 

52. 

I 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent failed maintain written job 
descriptions for all positions related to hazardous waste managerrent at the Facility. 

'I I 

Respondent violated COMAR 26.13.05.02G(4)(b) by failing to ~~intain written job 
descriptions for all positions related to hazardous waste management at the Facility. 

I! I 

II I 

COUNT VII 1.1 ! 

(Failure to Prepare and Implement a Complete Contingt;.lnfy Plan) 
I , 

I ! 

The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 46 of this CAPO are insprporated herein by : 
reference as though fully set forth at length. II 1, ', 

II I , 
I, . 

Pursuant to COMAR 26.13.05.04C(4), the owner or operator of a facility shall have a 
contingency plan for his facility, which must include a list of narlies, addresses, and 
phone numbers (office and home) of all persons qualified to act ~s emergency 
coordinator. II 

'11 

At the time of the November 14, 2012 CEI, Respondent did not have a completed 
contingency plan that lists the names, addresses, and phone numbers (office and home) of 
all persons qualified to act as emergency coordinator. 'l,\1, ,

1 

II ! 

Respondent violated COMAR 26.13.05.04C(4) by failing to have a contingency plan that 
lists names, address, and phone numbers (office and home) of all'persons qualified to act 
as emergency coordinator. I[ : 

I 
!I 

IV. CIVIL PENALTY 

In settlement of EPA's claims for civil monetary penalties assess*ble for the violations 
and facts alleged in this CAPO, Respondent consents to the assessment of a civil penalty 
in the amount of Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($45,000.00), which Respondent agrees 
to pay in accordance with the terms set forth below. Such civil p~nalty amount shall 
become due and payable immediately upon Respondent's receipt,of a true and correct 
signed copy of this CAPO, fully executed by the parties, signed by the Regional Judicial 
Officer, and filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk. In order to avoid the assessment of 
interest in connection with such civil penalty as described in this ~AFO, Respondent · 
must pay the civil penalty no later than thirty (30) calendar days aJter the date on which a 
copy of this CAPO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. 1,.1

1 

1

1 

• 

I I . 

. I 

The civil penalty settlement amount set forth in Paragraph 51, immediately above, was 
determined after consideration of the statutory factors set forth in 'section 3008(a)(3) of 
RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3), which include the seriousness of ~he violation and any 
good faith efforts to comply with the applicable requirements. Th.ese factors were 
applied to the particular facts and circumstances of this case with specific reference to 

PA's October, 1990 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy, as revised in JJne, 2003 ("RCRA 

9 II : 
II 

II 
I, 
'I 



Penalty Policy"), which reflect the statutory penalty criteria and ,factors set forth at 
Section 3008(a)(3) and (g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3) and (g). Complainant has 
also considered the Adjustment of Civil Penalties for Inflation, ~0 C.P.R. Part 19, and the 
November 16, 2009 memorandum by EPA Waste and Chemical,

1

Enforcement Division 
Director Rosemarie A Kelley, Adjusted Penalty Policy Matrice~J3,ased on the 2008 Civil 
Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule ("Kelley Memorandum"). 

1

1 I I, ! 

53. Payment of the civil penalty set forth in Paragraph 51, above, shall be made by either 
cashier's check, certified check, or electronic wire transfer, in th~ following manner: • 

II I 
!I I 

a. All payments by Respondent shall reference Respondent's name and address, and 
the EPA Docket Number of this Consent Agreement, i.e.; 1 RCRA-03-2013-0183; 

II 1 

b. All checks shall be made payable to "United States Tre~sriry"; 
II ' 
I! I 

c. All payments made by check and sent by regular mail shall be addressed and . 
mailed to: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 

Customer service contact: 513-487-2105 

d. All payments made by check and sent by overnight delive'ry service shall be 
addressed and mailed to: 

U.S. Bank 
Government Lockbox 979077 
U.S. EPA, Fines and Penalties 
1005 Convention Plaza 
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
St. Louis, MO 63101 

Contact: 314-418-1028 

All payments made by electronic wire transfer shall be diredted to: 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
ABA= 021030004 
Account = 68010727 
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54. 

SWIFT address= FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York, NY 10045 

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 
Environmental Protection Agency" 

All electronic payments made through the Automated Clearinghouse (ACH), also 
known as Remittance Express (REX), shall be directed to: 

US Treasury REX I Cashlink ACH Receiver 
ABA = 051036706 
Account No.: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency 
CTX Format Transaction Code 22- Checking 

Physical location of U.S. Treasury facility: 
5700 Rivertech Court 
Riverdale, MD 2073 7 

Contact: 866-234-5681 

On-Line Payment Option: WWW.PA Y.GOV 

Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field. Open and complete the form. 

Payment may be made using the Intra Governmental Payment and Collection 
application (IPAC), ALC 68-01-0727, and Treasury Symbol681099. Please 
include the Docket Number of this action (Docket No. RCRA-03-2013-0183) in 
the description field of the IP AC. The Customer Service contact is Molly 
Williams at 513-487-2076. 

Additional payment guidance is available at: 

http:/ /www.epa.gov/ocfo/finservices/make _a _payment.htm 

the time of payment, Respondent shall send a notice of such payment, including a 
ofthe check or electronic fund transfer, as applicable, to: 

Lydia Guy 
Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) 
U.S. EPA, Region III 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029; 

and 
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Dominique Freyre 
Assistant Regional Counsel (3RC30) 
U.S. EPA, Region III 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029. 

V. CERTIFICATION 

55. The person signing this CA on behalf of Respondent certifies to "P~A by his or her 
signature herein that Respondent, as of the date of the execution of this CA, is in 
compliance with the provisions of RCRA, Subtitle C, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921- 6939g, federal 
hazardous waste regulations set forth at 40 C.P.R. Parts 260-266, 268 and 270-273, and 
the MdHWMR, COMAR Title 26, Subtitle 13 et seq., at the Facility. This certification is 
based on the personal knowledge of the signer or an inquiry of th~ person or persons . 
responsible for the Facility's compliance with Subtitle C of RCRAl 

I

I I 

VI. OTHER APPLICABLE LAws II I 

II I 
1: I 

56. Nothing in this CAPO shall relieve Respondent of any duties oth~rwise imposed upon 
them by applicable federal, state, or local law and/or regulation. 11 I , 

VII. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS ':II I ', 

I I . 
, I 

57. This CAPO resolves only EPA's claims for civil penalties forth~, specific violations and 
facts which are alleged in this Consent Agreement. Nothing in thi~. CAPO shall be 
construed as limiting the authority of EPA to undertake action agaihst any person, 
including the Respondent, in response to any condition which EPA', determines may 
present an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public he~lth, public welfare or 
the environment. In addition, this settlement is subject to alllimirations on the scope of 
resolution and to the reservation of rights set forth in Section 22)8(c) of the 
Consolidated Rules of Practice. Further, EPA reserves any right~ and remedies available 
to it under RCRA, the regulations promulgated thereunder, and any other federal laws or 
regulations for which EPA has jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this CAPO 
following its filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. Respondenr' r~serves all available 
rights and defenses it may have, consistent with the terms of this ~AFO, to defend 
themselves in any such action. Ill, I 

58. This CAPO and any provision herein shall not be construed as an,',admission of liability in 
any criminal or civil action or other administrative proceeding, except in an action of 
proceeding to enforce or seek compliance with this CA and accompanying FO. · 

I 
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59. 

60. 

61. 

VIII. FULL AND FINAL SATISFACTION 
:I 
II 

This settlement shall constitute full and final satisfaction of all ciyil claims for penalties 
which Complainant has under RCRA Section 3008(a) and (g), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and 

II I (g), for the violations and facts alleged in this CA. 11 

IX. PARTIES BOUND II 

II ! 

This CAPO shall apply to and be binding upon EPA, Respondent, Respondent's officers 
I' I 

and directors (in their official capacity) and Respondent's successqrs and assigns. By his 
or her signature below, the person signing this CA on behalf of Respondent 
acknowledges that he or she is fully authorized to enter into this CA and to bind the 
Respondent to the terms and conditions of this CAPO. 

X. EFFECTIVE DATE 

I 

The effective date of this CAPO is the date on which the Final 0 cter is filed with the 
Regional Hearing Clerk after signature by the Regional Administr~tor or his designee, the 
Regional Judicial Officer. I 

XI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

' 62. This CAPO constitutes the entire agreement and understanding o the parties concerning 
settlement of the above-captioned action and there are no representktions, warranties, 
covenants, terms or conditions agreed upon between the parties oth!er than those 
PYrlrP<;:<;:prl in this CAPO. ' I 

I I 

13 



For Rlespondent: 

Date: +-C)-'--11-( q---'{l-=-.?_o_C3 __ 

For th'e Complainant: 

Phoenix Color Corp.: 

I 

By: ~~-Cf~ 
Brian Keck ,! I 

Senior Vice President, Operations 

U.S. Environmental Protection Ag~ncy, Region III: 

I 

By: D 
Dominique Freyre 
Assistant Regional C 

After reviewing the EPA Allegations of Fact, Conclusions of Law,:and other pertinent 
matters, the Land and Chemicals Division of the United States Environmental Protection 
Agenc~, Region III, recommends that the Regional Administrator, or his d~signee, the Regional 
Judici~l Officer, issue the attached Final Order. li 

Date: ~9.--· ~_S_. 1_., __ By: 

14 
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il 

R~CEIVED 
:! I 
I' I 

2013 SEP 26 PH 3: 18 
I 

BEFORE THE UNITED STATEjEGIOUAL hEARING CLERK 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION A~"fGION IIJ, PHIL A. PA 

In th Matter of: 

Phoenix Color Corp. 
18249\ Phoenix Drive 
Hageustown, MD 21742 

Respondent 

Phoenix Color Corp. 
18249\Phoenix Drive 
Hagerstown, MD 21742 

Facility 

REGION III 1111 I 
!I 
I: 
il 
I' :I 

Docket No. RCRA'-03-2013-0183 

Proceeding under S~ction 3008(a) and 
(g) of the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 

I 

Section 6928(a) and (g) 

I 

II 

FINAL ORDER 

Complainant, the Director, Land and Chemical Division, U.S. Env~ronmental Protection 
Agency - Region III, and Respondent, Phoenix Color Corp., have executed a document entitled 
"ConsJnt Agreement" which I hereby ratify as a Consent Agreement in actordance with the 
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment bf Civil Penalties and 
the Re~ocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules of Practice"), 40 
C.F.~·\Part 22. The t~rms ?f the foregoing Consent Agreement are accepted by the undersigned 
and moorporated herem as 1f set forth at length. !,:, \ 

1: 

!1, I 

NOW, THEREFORE, PURSUANT TO Section 22.18(b)(3) of the ,Consolidated Rules of 
Practict and Section 3008(a) and (g) of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 6928(a) and (g) ("RCRA"), and having determined, based on the representations of the parties 
in the Juached Consent Agreement, that the civil penalty agreed to therein '

1

was based upon a 
considclration of the factors set forth in Section 3008(a)(3) and (g), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3) and 
(g), IT [s HEREBY ORDERED that Respondent pay a civil penalty of Forty-Five Thousand 
Dollar~ ($45,000.00) as set forth in Section IV of the Consent Agreement, :and to comply with 
the terd,s and conditions of the Consent Agreement. I 

I 
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I 

In the Matter of: Phoenix Color Corp., Docket No. RCRA-03-2013-0183 
II 

iThe effective date of this Final Order and the accompanying Consent Agreement is the 
date on'

1

which the Final Order, signed by the Regional Administrator of U.S. EPA Region III or 
the Regional Judicial Officer, is filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk ofU.S. EPA- Region III. 

I! 

! 

jpl!P 
Dae: 

16 

~ kai-ae-
Renee Sarajian 1 

Regional Judicial Officer 
U.S. EPA, Region III 



RECEIVED 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 2013 SEP 26 Pt1 3: 18 

~hereby certify that the original and one copy of the Cons~'M~~~1JA~~der, 
Docket No. RCRA-03-2013-0183, have been hand delivered and fiT~ wtth the EPA Region III 
Regional Hearing Clerk on the date below, and that a copy of the same was sent via UPS 
expedit~d delivery to the following: 

I 

Cary Perlman, Esq. 
Latham & Watkins, LLP 
233 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 5800 
Chicago, IL 60606 

I 

I 1 ,... )f) -13 
Date mique S. Freyre (3 

Asst. Regional Counsel 
U.S. EPA, Region III 
(215) 814-2614 


